REVISED
AGENDA
MEETING VENUE:
This meeting will be held in line
with the Local Authorities &
Police & Crime Panels
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local
Authority & Police & Crime Panel
Meetings) (England & Wales)
Regulations 2020.
The meeting will be held virtually
via Zoom and streamed live, via
the following link:
www.facebook.com/SouthHollandDCoffic
ial/

Contact:
Direct Dial:
e-mail:

Democratic Services
01775 764626
demservices@sholland.gov.uk

Date:

15 September 2020

Dear Councillor,
The Annual meeting of the DISTRICT COUNCIL will be held virtually, as detailed above,
on Wednesday, 23 September 2020, commencing at 6.30 pm at which your attendance
is requested.
Yours faithfully,

Anna Graves
Chief Executive
(Quorum:13)
AGENDA
1.

Election of a Chairman
The Chairman/Monitoring Officer will invite nominations for the election
of a Chairman for the ensuing year.

2.

Election of a Vice-Chairman
The Chairman will invite nominations for the election of a ViceChairman.

3.

Apologies for absence.

4.

Minutes
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 29 July
2020 (copy enclosed).

5.

Declaration of Interests.
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the meeting without
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item,
except where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of
dispensation.)

6.

Chairman's Announcements.

7.

Announcements by Leader.

8.

Announcements by Members of the Cabinet.

9.

Questions asked on notice under Standing Order 6

10.

Questions asked without notice under Standing Order 7

11.

Report from Cabinet meeting held on 15 September 2020
To consider recommendations of the Cabinet in respect of:

(Pages
5 - 10)

(Pages
11 - 38)

2019/20 Financial Outturn – To provide information on the outturn
financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2020 (Cabinet agenda
item 7)
12.

Political Group Regulations and Committee Membership Review
To confirm, in accordance with the Local Government (Committees and
Political Groups) Regulations 1990, appointments to committees and
review of membership (Report of the Executive Manager Governance
(Deputy Monitoring Officer) enclosed)

(Pages
39 - 46)

13.

Appointment of Independent Person
This report requests that Council approve the appointment of an
Independent person for standards of conduct issues affecting Council
and Parish Council Members, in accordance with the requirements of
Section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011 (Report of the Executive
Manager Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) enclosed)

(Pages
47 - 50)

14.

Annual Treasury Management Review 2019/20
To consider the Annual Treasury Management Review for 2019/20
(Report of the Executive Director – Commercialisation (S151) enclosed)

(Pages
51 - 66)

15.

Special Urgency - Non-Key Decisions - Application of Call-In
To report to Council reasons for urgency relating to a number of NonKey Decisions, as required by the Council’s Constitution (Report of the
Executive Manager Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) enclosed)

(Pages
67 - 72)

16.

Nominations for Committees and other Seats and Proposed Changes to

the Constitution.
To receive, from political groups, nominations for any changes to
Committees and other seats and to consider any proposed changes to
the Constitution.
17.

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent

NOTE:

No other business is permitted unless by reason of special
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the
Chairman is of the opinion that the items(s) should be
considered as a matter of urgency.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4.
-1-

Minutes of a meeting of the SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL held in the This
meeting will be held in line with the Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & Police & Crime Panel Meetings)
(England & Wales) Regulations 2020, on Wednesday, 29 July 2020 at 6.30 pm.
PRESENT
F Biggadike (Chairman)
P A Redgate (Vice-Chairman)
B Alcock
J R Astill
J Avery
A C Beal
M D Booth
C J T H Brewis
P E Coupland
A C Cronin
T A Carter
A Casson
R Gambba-Jones

R A Gibson
R Grocock
M Hasan
J L King
C J Lawton
J D McLean
A M Newton
N H Pepper
G A Porter
J L Reynolds
G T D Rudkin

G P Scalese
M D Seymour
S-A Slade
E J Sneath
G J Taylor
A C Tennant
S C Walsh
D J Wilkinson
A R Woolf
C N Worth

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors
H J W Bingham, H Drury and J Tyrrell,
In Attendance: Executive Director – Commercialisation (S151), Executive Manager –
Governance, Place Manager, Environmental Services Manager, Strategic Housing
Manager, Licensing and Business Support Manager, Democratic Services Manager,
Democratic Services Team Leader.
Action By

10.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.
Apologies were received from or on behalf of H Bingham, H Drury
and J Tyrrell.

11.

MINUTES
That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 May 2020 be signed
as a correct record as soon as reasonably practical after the
meeting.

12.

SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDER NO.5
Consideration was given to the suspension of Standing Order
No.5 (Standard Order of Business)
DECISION:
That Standing Order No.5 be suspended.

Page 5

-2SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 29 July 2020

13.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were none.

14.

QUESTIONS ASKED ON NOTICE UNDER STANDING ORDER
6
There were none.

15.

QUESTIONS ASKED WITHOUT NOTICE UNDER STANDING
ORDER 7
Question to: Portfolio Holder for Communities and Facilities, Cllr
Taylor
Question from: Cllr Newton
Topic: Reopening of Ayscoughfee Museum
Cllr Newton advised that Lincolnshire County Council were
providing a shielding hour at Lincoln Castle museum once it had
reopened. Cllr Newton asked whether this was something that
could be provided at Ayscoughfee Hall Museum once it reopened.
Cllr Taylor advised that this was something he would look into and
report back to Cllr Newton.
Question to: Portfolio Holder for Communities and Facilities, Cllr
Taylor
Question from: Cllr Alcock
Topic: Health and Safety
Cllr Alcock advised that initial legislation around COVID-19 was
interpreted as events, such as village fetes, could not go ahead.
Recently the interpretation of this legislation had changed to
assist events to be delivered in a safe manner. Cllr Alcock asked
how the authority was interpreting the legislation in enabling
events in the district to go ahead safely.
Cllr Taylor advised that the authority hoped to return services for
residents to use with confidence and had measures in place to
operate in a safe environment.

16.

WORKFORCE STRATEGY 2019-2023 (REVISED FOLLOWING
CV19)

Page 6

-3SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 29 July 2020

Consideration was given to the report of the Chief Executive and
the Portfolio Holder for Governance and Customer to seek
changes to the Workforce Strategy (2019-2023) which was
revised following the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Portfolio Holder for Governance and Customer introduced the
report and highlighted the following points:
 Changes had been made to the Workforce Strategy 20192023 following the COVID-19 pandemic;
 There had been a rapid shift over the last four months to
remote working and there was a need to ensure that staff
were performance focused and managed based on
outcomes whenever and wherever they worked;
 There was a need to respond to changing customer needs
and to enhance the customer experience by ensuring staff
continued to be more digital in delivering services, while
still maintaining face-to-face services where appropriate;
 The HR team were working with the Health and Safety
team to ensure that all staff were working in a safe
environment and were monitoring staff health and
wellbeing.
The Portfolio Holder proposed that the recommendation be
amended to ensure that the Strategy is reviewed in January 2021.
It was questioned whether current difficulty in filling vacant roles
was likely to continue, given that there were likely to be higher
levels of unemployment due to the pandemic. Cllr Alcock
requested that an update report to be brought to the Performance
Monitoring Panel in a year’s time on the Council’s progress
against the criteria set out in the report.
The Executive Director for Commercialisation advised that it had
previously been very difficult to recruit for specialist roles and
despite numerous attempts, these roles remained vacant.

DECISION:
That the Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 (revised following CV19)
be approved and reviewed in January 2021.
17.

SPECIAL URGENCY - NON-KEY DECISIONS - APPLICATION
OF CALL-IN
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager –
Governance to report to Council reasons for urgency relating to a

Page 7

-4SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 29 July 2020

number of Non-Key Decisions, as required by the Council’s
Constitution.
The Executive Manager - Governance introduced the report and
noted that there had been six Non-Key Decisions made since the
last Full Council meeting which were set out in Appendix A of the
report.
DECISION:
That the information contained within the report be noted.
18.

REPORT FROM CABINET MEETINGS HELD ON 16 JUNE
2020 AND 21 JULY 2020
a) Consideration was given to the recommendations of the
Cabinet in respect of the Re-opening of South Holland
Markets and Spalding Market Stall provision report which
considered the options for re-opening the markets in South
Holland and the market stalls provision at Spalding Market
(considered at Cabinet on 16 June 2020 and 21 July 2020).
The full Council voted to exclude the press and public under
Paragraphs 1, 3 and 5 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972, for consideration of this, Item 8a, and Item 13 – Covid
Implications on the Leisure Operating Contract.
DECISION:
That, in light of the outcome of the consultation with staff and
in light of the content of the confidential report at Appendix C
generally, the Council ceases market stall provision in
Spalding and follows its usual process arising as a result and
as referenced in paragraph 5.1 of that report.
(Cllr Newton wished for it to be noted in the minutes that she
voted Against the recommendation)

19.

COVID IMPLICATIONS ON THE LEISURE OPERATING
CONTRACT
Consideration was given to the report of the Leader and the
Executive Director – Commercialisation (S151) which sought
feedback on a decision to be taken by the Leader of the Council
in respect of the contractual position and range of potential
options for the leisure management contract.

Page 8

-5SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 29 July 2020

DECISION:
That the Council supports the Leader’s proposed approach as set
out in the appendix to the report.
The press and public were re-admitted to the meeting for the
remainder of the business.
REPORT FROM CABINET MEETINGS HELD ON 16 JUNE 2020
AND 21 JULY 2020
8b) Consideration was given to the recommendations of the
Cabinet in respect of the resourcing of the Council’s Housing
Development Team. The proposal would bring two additional
Housing Development Project Manager posts into the
establishment to align with the authority’s ambition to build
new council houses and deliver new homes through its
housing companies (considered at Cabinet on 21 July 2020,
Cabinet minute 17, Cabinet agenda item 7).
DECISION:
That two additional Housing Development Project Manager
posts (2 FTE) be created within the Council’s permanent
staffing establishment.
20.

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE
URGENT
There was one urgent item of business that was added to the
agenda with the Chairman’s approval on 24 July.

21.

PAVEMENT CAFE LICENSING
Consideration was given to the report of the Portfolio Holder for
Public Protection and the Licensing and Business Support
Manager to consider delegating to the Lincolnshire County
Council authority to discharge all functions relating to pavement
licences under Sections 1 to 9 of the Business and Planning Act
2020.

DECISION:
1) That the Lincolnshire County Council be authorised to
discharge, for the South Holland District Council area, all
functions relating to pavement licences contained in
sections 1 to 9 of the Business and Planning Act 2020; and

Page 9

-6SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 29 July 2020

2) That the Licensing and Business Support Manager be
authorised to:
make all decisions under sections 1 to 9 of the Act until
such time as the County Council formally agrees to
discharge such functions; and
agree arrangements with the County Council regarding
the administration of the scheme pending such formal
agreement.

(The meeting ended at 8.10pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 10

Agenda Item 11.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Cabinet

To:

South Holland District Council Wednesday, 23 September 2020

(Author:

Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer)

Subject

Report from Cabinet meeting held on 15 September 2020

Purpose:

To consider recommendations of the Cabinet in respect of:
2019/20 Financial Outturn – To provide information on the outturn financial
position of the Council as at 31 March 2020 (Cabinet minute 26) (Cabinet
agenda item 7)

Recommendations:
a) That the net General Fund overspend of £218k be funded from the Council Tax Reserve;
b) That the value of reserves listed in Appendix A – Table 4 currently retained in the reserves
detailed, £234k, are re-assigned to an Earmarked reserves fund to ensure that those funds
are clearly designated to the purpose listed;
c) That the revised General Fund capital programme of £10.386m Appendix A – Table 7 and
the revised HRA capital programme for 2020/21 of £12.077m Appendix A – Table 9 are
approved.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution provides that only the full Council may exercise the
functions of approving, adopting or amending the policy framework and budget, and
adopting or changing the Constitution. Staffing matters are also a Council function. The
Cabinet however has a responsibility for advising the Council on such matters. At its
meeting on 15 September 2020, the Cabinet made recommendations to Council in respect
of the above items which may affect the budget and policy framework, Constitution or
comprise staffing issues.

1.2

The remainder of this report details the recommendations of the Cabinet which must be
read in conjunction with the individual reports to Cabinet, copies of which are attached as
appendices.

2.0

2019/20 Financial Outturn
(Report submitted to Cabinet – Item 7)
Consideration was given to the report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Executive
Director Commercialisation (S151) which provided information on the outturn financial
position of the Council as at 31 March 2020.

Page 11

Clarity was sought regarding the involvement of Members in the preparation of the report.
The Leader confirmed that all Portfolio Holders were afforded opportunities to review their
Portfolio Accounts and that there was nothing on the financial records which was beyond
the sight of Members should they wish to view the details of the reports. It was also
commented that regular reports to Cabinet on the finances are provided.
An update was requested regarding decent homes and timescales regarding re-roofing.
The Leader advised that delays had occurred due to the Council seeking to award
contracts to localised businesses able to provide competitive quotes.
Councillor Newton also commented on the good work regarding the brown bins and
whether there was any opportunity to reduce the large queue of residents wishing to join
the scheme. The Portfolio Holder for Place advised that work was currently being
undertaken to assist in taking this forward.
DECISION:
1) That the report and Appendix A be noted.
2) That the contributions to and use of reserves be agreed in line with para 5.4.2 to 5.4.4
and Appendix A, Tables 3 and 5 of this report.
(Other options considered:
 To note the report and note approve the recommendations detailed in Appendix A.
 Do nothing
Reasons for decision:
 To provide members with information on the Council’s overall financial performance
in 2019/20 and to provide an updated financial position on reserves for 2020/21)

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

None

Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Appendix B

Cabinet Agenda Item 7
Cabinet Agenda Item 7 – Appendix A

Page 12

APPENDIX A

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Portfolio Holder for Finance and Executive Director - Commercialisation
(S151)

To:

Cabinet 15 September 2020

Author:

Carl Holland, Strategic Business Partner

Subject:

2019/20 Financial Outturn

Purpose:

To provide information on the outturn financial position of the Council as at
31 March 2020.

Recommendations:
1)

That the report and Appendix A be noted.

2)

That the contributions to and use of reserves be agreed in line with para 5.4.2 to 5.4.4 and
Appendix A, Tables 3 and 5 of this report.

Recommendations to Council:
3)

That the net General Fund overspend of £218k be funded from the Council Tax Reserve

4)

That the value of reserves listed in Appendix A – Table 4 currently retained in the reserves
detailed, £234k, are re-assigned to an Earmarked reserves fund to ensure that those funds
are clearly designated to the purpose listed.

5)

That the revised General Fund capital programme of £10.386m Appendix A – Table 7
and the revised HRA capital; programme for 2020/21 of £12.077m Appendix A – Table 9
are approved.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

Throughout the year quarterly monitoring reports have been completed forecasting the
expected year end out-turn against the budgets.

1.2

This report provides information on the unaudited 2019/20 outturn financial position of the
Council in the following areas:





The Revenue Budget for the General Fund (GF) and Housing Revenue Account
(HRA),
The General Fund and HRA Reserves Position,
The Capital Programme for 2019/20 (GF and HRA), and
The Treasury Management Performance for the year.

Page 13

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

To note the report and to approve the recommendations detailed at Appendix A.

2.2

To note the report and not approve the recommendations detailed in Appendix A.

2.3

Do nothing.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To provide members with information on the Council’s overall financial performance in
2019/20 and to provide an updated financial position on reserves for 2020/21.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

To ensure that members are updated regularly on the Council’s overall financial position and
have the information required to assist in future financial decision making.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

This report is financial in nature. The outturn position in respect of the General Fund, HRA,
Capital Programme, Reserves and Treasury Management are summarised within the
following paragraphs, with further detail provided at Appendix A.

5.2

General Fund Revenue Outturn

5.2.1

The final year actual was a budget overspend of £218k, this variance is after the approval in
quarter 3 to fund planning fee income shortfall and additional Homelessness cost of £600k
from the Council Tax Reserve. It is recommend that the £218k overspend is also funded from
the Council Tax Reserve.

5.2.2

The revenue outturn position by Directorate is detailed at Appendix A - Table 1 together
with an analysis of service variations. The major variations are as follows:

5.2.3

The 2019/20 budget included planned use of reserves of £3.326m offset by contributions to
reserves of £2.508m, this was a budgeted net use of reserves of £0.818m.

Page 14

5.2.4

Council approved changes in the year resulting in an increased actual use of reserves
during the year to £3.295m and a contribution to reserves of £2.606m, this resulted in an
actual net use of reserves for 2019/20 of £0.689m.

Reserve
Transformation
Investment and
Growth
Earmarked Grants
Council Tax
Replacement and
Refurbishment
Total Specific
General Fund
5.2.5

Balance
31/03/2019
£'000
(299)

Transfers
to
Reserve
£'000
-

Transfer
from
Reserve
Capital
£'000
54

Transfer
from
Reserve
Revenue
£'000
104

Balance at
31/03/2020
£'000
(141)

(5,489)
(394)
(2,348)

(1,148)
(174)
(1,284)

794
0
29

579
116
1,542

(5,264)
(452)
(2,061)

(172)

-

-

77

(95)

(8,702)

(2,606)

877

2,418

(8,013)

Actual revenue uses of reserves include: Homelessness £400k,
 Planning Income £200k.
 Repairs and Refurbishment various sites £243k,
 Priory Road Works £254k,
 PSPS Transformation investment £213k, and
 Pride in South Holland £100k.

5.3.2 Further details on the movement in Reserves are set out in Appendix A - Table 3 to this
report.
5.3

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Revenue Outturn

5.3.1 The HRA delivered an in year underspend of £541k. This was mainly due to:
 Additional rental income compared to that budgeted (£50k).
 Reduced costs of repairs and maintenance (£126k) due to some delays in projects
and other reduced service costs.
 Supervision and Management costs lower than budget (£72k) due to reduced
professional fees, furniture and equipment cost and other net savings.
 Depreciation costs higher than budget by £135k.
 The required bad debt provision was less than budget (£140k) due to the emerging
impact of Universal Credit.
More detail is provided at Appendix A - Table 2.
5.4

Reserves (GF and HRA)

5.4.1 General Fund Specific Reserves have reduced by £0.689m from £8.702m to £8.013m. This
includes the recommended transfer from the Council Tax Reserve to fund the £218k
overspend for 2019/20 which is subject to approval by Council.

Page 15

5.4.2 Reserves were used to support a number of planned expenditure items and to support new
budget pressures. There were also areas where reserves were budgeted though not used,
such as the Crease Drove Development and where additional unbudgeted contributions were
made to reserves, such as through grant money (Brexit and COVID support grant). Further
details are set out in Appendix A - Table 3.
5.4.3

The General Fund Reserve Balance remains at £2.078m. During 2020/21 the General Fund
Reserve will be kept under review relative to the Council’s overall risks and members will be
informed if any change is proposed to the level of this reserve.

5.4.4

The HRA General Reserve balance at 31st March 2019 is £19.809m and in-year increase of
£3.234m. The Major Repairs balance has reduced from £4.684m to £3.586m as a result of
capital funding requirements in excess of the annual contribution from depreciation. More
detail is provided at Appendix A – Table 5.

5.5

Capital – General Fund

5.5.1

The total General Fund Capital Programme for 2019/20 was £10.053m all of which had
received specific scheme approval. Compared to the approved budget, in year spend totalled
£3.902m, giving an underspend of £6.151m.

5.5.2

The main areas of underspend relate to operational acquisitions, Welland Homes, and
provisional investment in capital acquisitions for commercial growth. Some schemes have
experienced delays in scheme starts and will require rollover of budget into the 2020/21
capital programme. Revisions totalling £3.657m are recommended for approved schemes
giving a revised 2020/21 programme of £10.386m. The capital programme has been revised
to reflect the status of planned programmes at 31st March 2020 and is included at Appendix
A – table 7.

5.5.3

Appendix A – Table 6 provides more information on the 2018/19 General Fund capital
outturn position, how it was funded and the variances from budget. Table 7 provides details
of the revised 2020/21 capital programme as a result of required rollover of underspent
budgets.

5.5.4

It is recommended that Council approves the revised 2020/21 General Fund Capital
Programme, as set out at Appendix A table 7, of £10.386m.

5.5.5

During 2020/21 there may be new emerging capital project funding requirements. Any
required amendments to the capital programme will be presented in the Quarterly reports
during 2020/21.

5.6

Capital – HRA

5.6.1

The total HRA Capital programme for 2019/20 was £11.184m all of which had received
specific scheme approval. Against this approved budget in-year spend totalled £8.888m, an
underspend of £2.296m. The main reasons for this underspend relate to delays in the new
build affordable housing programme (£1.436m), underspends of (£0.425m) on the decent
homes programme (mainly heating, electrical and chimneys) and delayed delivery of ICT and
PSPS transformation programmes (£0.261m).

Page 16

5.6.2

Appendix A – Table 8 provides more information on the HRA capital outturn position, how
it was funded and the variances from budget. The revised HRA capital programme for
2020/21 as a result of determined as necessary rollover in unspent budget (£2.548m) is
provided at Table 9 and totals £12.077m.

5.6.3

It is recommended that Council approves the revised 2020/21 HRA Capital Programme, as
set out at Appendix A table 9, of £12.077m.

5.7

Capital - Other

5.7.1

During 2019/20 the Council received £2.228m in capital receipts, £2.187m of which related
to the HRA. There were 28 houses sold under Right to Buy. More detail is provided at
Appendix A.

5.7.2

Appendix A - Table 10 also sets out the Council’s ongoing capital financing requirement,
the measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing requirement. This has remained low as a
result of programme underspends, but is budgeted to increase due to roll forward of unspent
budget from 2019/20 of £3.657m. From major capital programmes for Welland Homes,
Crease Drove industrial Units and additional funding for Growth and commercialisation
projects.

5.8

Treasury Management

5.8.1

Appendix A provides more information on the investments held by the Council at 31 March
2020 (£44.3m). The average investments held during the year were £42.7m.

5.8.2

Interest earned on investments in 2019/20 was £517k (compared to the budget of £520k).

5.8.3

Members are asked to note the Treasury Management position. More information on
Treasury Management is available in the Treasury Annual Report which was considered by
Governance and Audit Committee on 30 July 2020, and will be considered by Full Council
on 23 September 2020.

5.9

Statement of Accounts

5.9.1

The unaudited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2020 have
been provided to the Council’s auditors (Ernst Young), with the audit due to be completed by
the end of November 2020.

5.9.2

The unaudited Statement of Accounts will be published on the Council’s website during
September 2020 for public inspection, which will continue for a period of 30 days, in line with
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

5.9.3

The Financial Statements have been prepared under The Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

6

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

Income and expenditure affect all wards of the Council.

Page 17

7

ACRONYMS

7.1

GF
HRA
RTB
ICT
MTFP
PSPS

General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
Right to Buy
Information and Communications Technology
Medium term Financial Plan
Public Sector Partnership Services

Background papers:
The 2019/20 Estimates Report to Council 27 February 2019

Lead Contact Officer:
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

carl.holland@pspsl.co.uk

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

Carl Holland; Strategic Business Partner

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Financial report for 2019/20 with details of the GF and HRA revenue
spend, Reserves, Capital expenditure and Treasury Management.

Page 18

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX A

South Holland District Council
Financial Report for the Year Ending 31 March 2020
General Fund Revenue Outturn
The total General Fund (GF) budget requirement for the year was £13,688k as approved by
Council on 27 February 2019.
The final GF outturn position is an overspend of £218k (Table 1), this variance is after the
approval in quarter 3 to fund planning fee income shortfall and additional homelessness costs
of £600k from the Council Tax Reserve. This position required some further support from
reserves for unplanned expenditure, the use of reserves to support the budget is detailed at
Table 3. The significant variances from budget that have contributed to the GF outturn position
are detailed in the notes to Table 1 below.
Actual Forecast
Adverse/
Outturn Outturn (Favourable)
Q4
Q3
Movement
£000
£000
£000

Net Service
Overspend
Additional Financing
Income
Net Overspend

361

804

(443)

(143)

(131)

(12)

218

673

(455)

Table 1 – General Fund Revenue Outturn –
Service Area

Note
Commercialisation
Commercialisation
Economic Development
Finance
Revenues and Benefits
Total – Commercialisation
Place
Assets and Property
Building Control
Community Development
Housing
Environmental Services
Planning
Spalding Special Expenses
Town Centre Improvement Programme
Investment properties
Total - Place

Actual
Outturn
£’000

Variance
£’000

1
2
3
4

437
106
756
436
1,735

293
146
1,080
480
1,999

(144)
40
324
44
264

5
6
7
8

205
(45)
965
248
3,609
(275)
55
0
(153)
4,609

237
(51)
993
241
3,610
(215)
56
1
(155)
4,717

32
(6)
28
(7)
1
60
1
1
(2)
108

9

Page 19
1

Budget
£’000

Service Area
Note
Strategy and Governance
Corporate Improvement and Performance
Communications
Corporate Management
Democratic Services
HR
IT and Customer Services
Public Protection
Total - Strategy and Governance
Statutory recharge to the HRA for
support services (*)
Internal Drainage Boards & Parish
Precepts
Investment Income
Transfers to Reserves
Increase/ (Decrease) in Impairment
Allowance
Total Cost of Services
Financing
Government Grants
Council Tax
Retained Business Rates
Total Financing

Actual
Outturn
£’000

Budget
£’000

Variance
£’000

10
11
12
13

(24)
120
549
916
338
1,226
445
3,570

114
139
599
1,025
334
1,223
454
3,887

138
19
50
108
(4)
(3)
9
317

14

(1,721)

(1,782)

(61)

15

3,294
(358)
2,443

3,294
(356)
2,307

2
(136)

16

116
13,688

(17)
14,049

(133)
361

17

(2,526)
(6,046)
(5,116)
(13,688)

(2,706)
(6,046)
(5,079)
(13,831)

(180)
37
(143)

-

218

218

18

Funding Shortfall Drawn from Council
Tax Reserve

Support service recharges are a non-controllable cost to budget holders, and are therefore not reported
as part of the service analysis above.
(*) An adjusting line has been added to show the value of recharges to the HRA, for support services
and corporate management (including the debt management recharge); a corresponding debit entry is
showing in the HRA table below.

Notes to Table 1:
1. Commercialisation (£144k) underspent
 Planning Policy is underspent by (£90k) due to lower than anticipated activity
in relation to the Local Development Framework.
 Housing Development and Strategy and Enabling are underspent by (£98k) as
a result of a vacant post in year (£22k), project support costs that have been
capitalised (£82k), this has been slightly offset by unbudgeted spend for Legal
and Professional costs £6k.
 Income from commercial projects not achieved £63k due to re-profiling of
Delivery Unit project timescales, this is offset by a saving from staff vacancies
(£19k).
2. Economic Development £40k Overspent
 Lower than anticipated rechargeable costs against Grants4Growth grant
claims.

Page 20
2

3. Finance £324k Overspent
 £231k of targeted savings reprofiled to 2020/21. Transformation savings of
£50k for joint owned Public Sector Partnership Services reprofiled to 2020/21.
 Banking charges over budget by £16k as a result of higher volume of
transactions.
 Actual pension costs under budget (£12k).
 In year Internal Audit fees are over budget by £15k and there are costs from
18/19 of £24k.
4. Revenues and Benefits £44k Overspent
 Net increase in court income over court collection costs (£4k).
 Council tax and Council Tax Benefit administration costs are (£8k) and (£13k)
lower than budget.
 Housing Benefits overpayment income lower than budgeted £100k.
Increasingly benefits are administered through Universal Credit lessening the
need to recover HB overpayments.
 A net overspend of £104k on Rent Allowance payments of and subsidy is offset
by an underspend of (£135k) on Rent Rebate payments and subsidy.
 A budgeted provision for Bad Debts of (£96k) was not required following a
review at year end. This is reflected within the favourable variance at note 16
below.
5. Assets and Property £32k overspent
 A £40k pressure arising from Priory Road Rents due to the rental agreement
commencing later than budgeted. Tenancy has since commenced.
 Utility charges were higher than estimated across various sites £17k and
Priory Road £5k.
 Additional spend on replacement of footway lighting, as a result of delivering
next phase earlier than planned £12k.
 Underspend of programmed maintenance budget (£58k) favourable.
 Adhoc savings (£6k).
 Leisure asset costs recoverable at end of contract (£78k) favourable.
 Additional costs of asset upgrade for Leisure assets £87k.
 Additional staff resource costs £11k adverse incurred to manage Leisure
Assets upgrade.
 Other adhoc costs £2k.
6. Building Control (£6k) underspent
 Building control fees favourable (£32k).
 Lower than budgeted Land Charge inspection fees £29k.
 Other savings on service costs (£3k).
7. Community Development £28k overspent
 South Holland Centre net favourable income from shows (£43k).
 South Holland Centre has additional staff costs £2k and unachieved salary
efficiencies £12k.
 South Holland Centre £4k overspend on utilities.
 An additional cost of £20k is for maintaining service levels during staff
absences at Ayscoughfee Museum.
 Utility costs £16k over budget across Ayscoughfee site, which are a result of
prolonged period of estimated charges. Other adhoc costs £2k.
 Christmas lights expenditure £7k adverse, funding to be arranged from S106.

Page 21
3





Leisure Management budget, the actuals are as per the contract, however, at
the time of budget setting the full terms of the agreement were not known
resulting in a variation between the estimated budget and the final contract.
And other Strategic Leisure Management variations amounting to £10k.
As previously reported Business Rates are being charged on the dry side
leisure centre. In the previous year the leisure centre was eligible for 100%
exemption, for 2019/20 the exemption has been determined at 50% creating
a pressure for the full year of £51k, this has been paid for from General Fund
Reserves.

8. Housing (£7k) underspent
 Homelessness B & B Accommodation up significantly £434k, due to the
implications of the Homelessness Reduction Act, £34k overspend after net
£400k contribution from Council Tax Reserve (approved by Council 26th
February 2020).
 Homelessness grant received and transferred to earmarked reserves £32k
adverse, but remains in reserves for use in 2020/21.
 Increased income (£49k) from recoverable costs for Disabled Facilities
Grants.
 Additional income from Houses in Multiple Occupation Licences above
budget of (£10k).
 Other adhoc savings on supplies (£14k).
9. Planning £60k overspent
 Underachieved Planning income of £352k offset by contribution from Council
Tax Reserve (£200k) approved by Council on 26th February 2020.
 Lower than anticipated spend on employees and professional fees (£108k) due
to in-house provision and lower than budgeted demand.
 Additional costs on staff travel £4k, Computer hardware £5k, other adhoc £7k.
10. Corporate Improvement and Performance £138k overspent
 Savings target reprofiled to 2020/21 £135k.
 Other £3k staff and computer hardware costs.
11. Communications £19k overspent
 Staff costs overspend £19k, including apprentice costs, salary efficiency
unachieved, this is offset in the HRA recharge line (£7k)
12. Corporate Management £50k overspent
 Correction payment to HMRC £25k.
 Shared staff costs in relation to pay increase £18k after partial recharge to
HRA.
 Other adhoc variations £7k.
13. Democratic Services £145k overspent.
Democratic Representation overspend of £37k includes: - ,
 Members National Insurance costs £20k,
 Elections VAT liability £26k
 Below budget spend on Parish elections (£4k)
 Electoral register grant higher than budgeted (£5k)
Right To Buy costs £7k recovered from Statutory Recharge to HRA.

Page 22
4

Legal Services budget underspend and additional income from lease renewal work
(£10k).
Procurement - insurance saving of (£37k) achieved, unrealised general fund savings
£74k as a result of high demand from Housing Revenue Account procurement needs.
14. Statutory Recharge to HRA (£61k) increased income
 In addition to budgeted recharge of corporate management and support
service costs to the HRA, additional recharges were incurred for Project
support, Right to buy administration costs and communication staff costs.
15. Transfer to Reserves (£136k) underspent.
 The budgeted contribution to Reserves to support future spend on Repairs and
Refurbishment used to support relevant in year expenditure (£136k)
16. Decrease in Impairment allowance (£133k) reduced provision.
 The provision for bad debt has been reviewed on the basis of better than
anticipated performance of overpaid housing benefits with lower than
anticipated impact of changes from Universal Credit at this time. The review
has resulted in a reduction from the budgeted contribution to bad debt provision
from £116k to (£17k). The provision for 2020/21 has been reduced to £86k from
£116k in 19/20.
17. Government Grants (£180k) increased income.
 Gains on S31 grants as a result of multiplier calculation change (£180k),
additional grant regarding discretionary relief not budgeted for.
18. Retained Business Rates £37k overspent.
 £23k overspend on levy payment due to changes in appeals provision at year
end. £14k relating to reduced renewable energy income in 18/19 released in
19/20 due to Collection Fund accounting.

Page 23
5

Housing Revenue Account
Table 2 – HRA Revenue Outturn –
The outturn for the HRA shows a favourable position of (£541k) underspend.

Service Area

Note

Budget
£’000

Actual
Outturn
£’000

Variance
£’000

Rent Income - Dwellings
Charges for Services and Facilities
Contributions to Expenditure
Total Income

1
2

(14,646)
(1,169)
(27)
(15,842)

(14,696)
(1,243)
(23)
(15,962)

(50)
(74)
4
(120)

Repairs and Maintenance
Supervision and Management
Rents, rates, taxes and other charges
Depreciation
Statutory recharge to the HRA for support
services
Total Expenditure
Contribution from Operations

3
4
5
6

2,857
2,961
79
3,124

2,731
2,897
56
3,259

(126)
(64)
(23)
135

1,721
10,742
(5,100)

1,782
10,725
(5,237)

61
(17)
(137)

Movement in the allowance for bad debts
Investment Income
Interest Payable on £67.456m
Capital expenditure charged in year
Transfer to MRR and Other Adjustments

7

221
(161)
2,347
-

81
(161)
2,347
(264)

(140)
(264)

(2,693)

(3,234)

(541)

8

Net (Surplus)/Deficit
Notes to Table 2:
1.

Rent Income Dwellings (£50k) additional income – This variance is circa 0.3% of total
income, Right to Buy sales and increased income from increased property stock have
had an impact on the overall position.

2.

Charges for Services and Facilities (£74k) underspent – Income from room and
premise hire has benefited from increased demand (£31k). Service charges on
Sheltered Housing (£16k) and Community Facilities (£13k) above budget but in line with
last year’s actuals. Sewerage charges income (£1k) higher than last year, no increase
budgeted, but charges rose in line with Anglian Water increases. Lifeline charges (£9k)
below budget. This is demand driven and fewer individuals are taking up the service.
Other adhoc costs incurred amounting to £5k.

3.

Repairs and Maintenance (£126k) underspent – There are underspends on materials
and consumables (£95k) for void and responsive repairs. Additional lease costs and van
rental of £49k. Slippage of the award of footpaths and roadways contract resulted in a
(£134k) in year underspend. Contractors are only used when the skills are not available
in house for specialised projects. There has been reduced demand for these services in
year, resulting in an underspend of (£61k). Expected work on Asbestos removal has not
been required (£121k). There was unbudgeted spend £124k on responsive roof repairs
and an £124k overspend on Planned Maintenance solid fuel servicing and gas repairs.
There are other adhoc savings amounting to (£13k).

Page 24
6

4.

Supervision and Management (£72k) underspent – Underspend on Maintenance in
Sheltered Housing and Community Facilities is (£39k), this is partly demand driven, in
addition to completion of programmed works. The Furniture and Equipment budget for
both Sheltered Housing and Community Facilities is (£43k) underspent as it is demand
driven. Actual utility expenditure is less than budgeted (£41k). The underspend was
reduced by recharges for project management of £60k.

5.

Rents Rates Taxes and Other Charges (£23k) underspent – Council tax and rent on
void properties is less than budgeted but comparable with 2018/19 levels.

6.

Depreciation £135k overspent - Effect of revaluations last year and amortisation of
Intangible assets.

7.

Movement in the allowance for bad debts (£140k) underspent – Budget was set high
due to emerging impact of universal credit, position will continue to be monitored.

8.

Transfer to MRR and Other Adjustments (£264k) – These are year-end Statutory
Adjustments, which include, Pension fund adjustments, revaluation adjustments and
gains on sale of property.

Page 25
7

RESERVES
Table 3 – General Fund Reserves

Reserve
Transformation

Page 26

Investment and Growth

Balance
31
Contributions
March
to Reserve
2019
£'000
£'000
(299)
-

(5,489)

(1,148)

Transfer
from
Reserve
(Capital)
£’000
54

Transfer
from
Reserve
(Revenue)
£'000
104

794

579

8

Balance
31
March
Comments
2020
£'000
(141) Revenue spend:
£36k National Graduate Trainee; £5k EHC Apprentice;
£23k Interim Programme Manager; £23k Office 365;
£17k Safeguarding Officer
Capital spend:
£6k Shared Public Protection Software; £48k Office 365
(5,264) Contributions:
(£52k) Green Waste Revenue; (£1,002k) New Homes
Bonus; (£29k) Leisure Management return; (£65k) HIF
Capital spend:
£127k PSPS Transformation; £43k Grounds
maintenance equipment; £143k Leisure Management
mobilisation; £247k Priory Road Works; £65k ICT
infrastructure; £45k Office 365; £101k Fleet
Maintenance Vehicles; £6k Electric Vehicle Charging;
£15k Castle Sports boiler; £2k Asset Feasibility
Revenue spend:
£80k Digital Strategy; £120k Delivery Unit resourcing;
£7k Priory Road Accommodation; £23k Strategic
leisure; £4k Planning - Course fee; £20k Planning Ocella; £27k Temporary resource - Housing; £3k
Temporary Fleet Admin post; £1k Future Towns; £12k
Asset feasibility; £39k FEZ; £77k Asset review
programme; £166k Asset Works

Reserve
Earmarked Grants

Council Tax

Balance
31
Contributions
March
to Reserve
2019
£'000
£'000
(393)
(174)

Transfer
from
Reserve
(Capital)
£’000
-

Transfer
from
Reserve
(Revenue)
£'000
116

(1,284)

29

1,542

(173)

-

-

77

(8,702)
(2,078)
(10,780)

(2,606)
(2,606)

877
877

2,418
2,418

Page 27

(2,348)

Replacement and
Refurbishment
Total Specific Reserves
General Reserve
Total Reserves

9

Balance
31
March
Comments
2020
£'000
(451) Contributions:
(£41k) Councillors’ Budgets; (£53k) Brexit Funding;
(£59k) COVID-19 LA Support Grant; (£15k) MHCLG Custom Build Grants; (£6k) MHCLG - New Burdens
Brownfield
Revenue spend:
£96k Homelessness reduction; £18k S106 - Donington;
£2k Public Protection - Brexit
(2,061) Contributions:
(£1,276k) NNDR Surplus on collection fund; (£8k)
Spalding Special budget underspend
Capital spend:
£10k Members ICT refresh; £19k Priory Road Works
Revenue spend:
£17k 18/19 Reserve Reallocation; £36k Asset works;
£51k Sports Hall - Business Rates contribution; £218k
GF Overspend; £400k Homelessness; £200k Planning
Income; £112k District Election; £318k Grants 4
Growth; £27k Shared Data Protection Officer (IGO);
£3k DCB contribution - Johnson's Portraits; £5k Noise
Monitoring Equipment; £148k Pride; £7k South Holland
Centre
(96) Revenue spend:
£77k Assets programmed maintenance
(8,013)
(2,078)
(10,090)

Table 4 – Proposed Earmarked reserves
It is recommend to Council that the following amounts currently retained in the Council’s General Fund Reserves detailed, £234k, are re-assigned to an
Earmarked reserves fund to ensure that those funds are clearly designated to the purpose listed.
Amount
£

Current Reserve

Council Tax Reserve
Replacement and Refurbishment
Reserve
Replacement and Refurbishment
Reserve
Investment and Growth Reserve

Scheme

(129,310) Spalding Special Account Reserve
(5,000) Equipment replacement-Power Station
NNDR leisure connection savings for
Leisure investment
(89,438) Planning 20% re-investment reserve
(234,017)
(10,269)

Total

Table 5 – Housing Revenue Account Reserves

Page 28

Balance
31 March
2019
£’000
HRA Working Balance
HRA Insurance Reserve
Major Repairs Reserve

Contributions
to Reserve
£’000

Balance
31 March
2020
£’000

Use of
Reserve
£’000

(16,575)

(3,234)

-

(200)

-

-

(4,684)

(3,260)

4,358

(21,459)

(6,494)

4,358

10

Comments

(19,809) Transfer of HRA surplus to reserve
(200)
(3,586) HRA depreciation contribution to MRR is
used to fund the capital programme in
future years. The transfer from MRR inyear was used to fund 19/20 capital
programme spend.
(23,595)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Table 6 – General Fund Capital Outturn

5
6

Budget
2019/20
£’000
82
67
94
146
10
92
36
30
42
83
46
15
2,500
-

Actual
Outturn
2019/20
£’000
82
13
92
127
10
77
19
27
41
83
15
19

Variance
(under)/
overspend
£’000
(54)
(2)
(19)
(15)
(17)
(3)
(1)
(46)
(2,500)
19

7

1,225

-

(1,225)

4
52
21
377
1,100
1,000
21
37
170
34
585
75
1,966
143
10,053

2
22
21
479
707
43
17
101
608
39
1,115
143
3,902

(2)
(30)
102
(1,100)
(293)
(21)
6
17
(69)
(34)
23
(36)
(851)
(6,151)

(38)
(1,110)
(4,466)
(4,439)
(10,053)

(38)
(1,872)
(1,115)
(877)
(3,902)

(762)
3,351
3,562
6,151

Note
Project
ICT Infrastructure
Shared Public Protection Software
Office 365 Additional Spend
PSPS Transformation Investment
Members ICT Equipment Refresh
Priory Road Central Heating
Priory Road Fire Doors & Access
Priory Road Toilets
Priory Road Lift
Priory Road LCC Registrars
South Holland Centre
Castle Sports – Boiler
Operational Acquisition
Temp. Accommodation Central
Heating
Capital Acquisitions re Growth and
Commercialisation
Purchase of Property for Temp.
accom. for Homelessness
Electric Vehicle Charging
Crease Drove
Grants for Growth
Food Enterprise Zone
Housing Infrastructure Funding (HIF)
Garden Waste (bins and vehicle)
Grounds Maintenance
Playground Equipment (S106)
Fleet Maintenance (3 Vehicles)
Pavement Cleaning Machine
Disabled Facilities Grants
Decent Homes Unfit and Disrepair
Welland Homes
Asset Investment
Total Approved Schemes

1
2
3
3
3
3
4

8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

Financed By:
Capital Receipts
Capital Grants and Contributions
Internal Borrowing
Revenue Resources

Page 29
11

Notes to Table 6:
1. Shared Public Protection System (£54k) – This project continues delivery into
2020/21.
2. PSPS Transformation Investment (£19K) – Current Programme budget continues
into 2020/21 funded from revenue.
3. Priory Road Schemes (£36k) – delay in works will result in Central Heating and Fire
Doors and Access to be carried forward to 2021/22. Toilets and Lift projects are
complete with small underspend.
4. South Holland Centre (£46k) – Budget carried over from 2018/19 not spent and no
longer required.
5. Operational Acquisition (£2.5m) – Project removed from programme.
6. Temporary Accommodation Central Heating (£19k) – Heating systems replaced on
temporary accommodation properties as part of Decent Homes program.
7. Capital Acquisitions re Growth and Commercialisation (£1.225m) – Programme
made no in year commitments, budget rolled forward to 2020/21.
8. Electric Vehicle Charging (£30k) – Program continues into 2020/21 with a revised
budget of £21k.
9. Grants for Growth (£291k) - Additional spend supported by grant income
10. Food Enterprise Zone (£1.1m) – Project delayed, carried forward to 2020/21
11. Housing Infrastructure Fund (£293k) – Funding from Lincolnshire County Council
Partnership, budget rolled forward to 2020/21.
12. Garden Waste bins and vehicles (£21k) - In year spend less than budgeted, amount
carried forward to 2020/21 and reduced from £21k to £10k.
13. Playground Equipment £17k – Installation funded by S106 monies.
14. Fleet Maintenance (£69k) – Equipment acquisition timescales delayed so balance
carried forward to 2020/21.
15. Pavement Cleaning Machine (£34k) – Delay in delivery due to Covid 19, delivered
early in 2020/21 year so carried forward
16. Disabled Facilities Grants (£23k) – Forecast expenditure is based upon current
scheme referrals from LCC and was lower than budgeted.
17. Decent Homes, Unfit and Disrepair (£36k) – Demand driven, and referrals less than
expected.
18. Welland Homes (£851k) – Five (Bentley Court) of the 10 properties programmed to
be purchased were purchased. The balance for the remaining five properties will be
carried forward into the 2020/21 program.

Page 30
12

As a result of the above project activity to the 31 March 2020, it is proposed that the Capital
Programme for 2020/21 is updated as follows in Table 7 and is recommended for approval
by Full Council.
A full review of the Capital Programme is currently underway due to the impact of Covid-19
and other priorities, a revised programme will be presented in a future report.

Table 7 – General Fund Capital Programme Revised 2020/21
Original
Budget
2020/21
£’000

Project
ICT Infrastructure
Shared Public Protection Software
Office 365 Additional Spend
PSPS Transformation Investment 60% GF
Priory Road - Air Conditioning / Cent Heating
Priory Road – Hardwood Sash Windows
Priory Road – Fire Doors & Access
South Holland Centre
Ayscoughfee Hall Lighting
Industrial Units Roof Replacement
Industrial Units Development of Compound
Capital Acquisitions re Growth &
Commercialisation
Purchase of Property for Homelessness
Electric Vehicle Charging
Crease Drove Industrial Units
Grants for Growth
Food Enterprise Zone
HIF Funding
Garden Waste
Grounds Maintenance
Environmental Services Operational
Facilities
Fleet Maintenance Vehicles (3)
Gladiator Pavement Cleaning Machine
Disabled Facilities Grants – Private sector
Decent Homes Unfit and Disrepair
Welland Homes

Total Approved Schemes
Financed By:
Capital Receipts
Capital Grants and Contributions
Internal Borrowing
Revenue Resources

Page 31
13

Budget
c/f
2019/20
£’000

Revised
Budget
2020/21
£’000

121
124
53
83
16
40
100
50

55
2
20
15
17
-

121
55
2
144
68
83
17
16
40
100
50

500
1,174
581
184
36
552
21
585
75
2,434
6,729

500
2
21
1,061
1,000
10
69
34
851
3,657

1,000
2
21
1,174
581
1,061
1,000
194
36
552
21
69
34
585
75
3,285
10,386

(749)
(1,241)
(3,170)
(1,569)
(6,729)

(1,043)
(851)
(1,763)
(3,657)

(749)
(2,284)
(4,021)
(3,332)
(10,386)

Note

Table 8 – Housing Revenue Account Capital Outturn

Project

Central Heating Upgrade
Kitchen and Bathroom Replacement
Electrical Upgrade
Gutters
Re-Roofing
Doors & Windows
Flat Entrance Doors Sheltered Schemes
Replacement Fire Doors Lansdowne
Court
Chimneys
Paths & Drives
Boundary Walls
Fees
Decent Homes
Sewerage Treatment Plant
The Square
Car Parks
Major Area Schemes
ICT Strategy
Housing IT System
PSPS Transformation Investment
IT/System
Major Adaptions
Aids & Adaptions
CSU Vehicle Replacement
CSU Vehicle Replacement
Grounds Maintenance
Environmental Services
Weston Redevelopment – Small Drove
Purchase of Units – Ashwood Homes
Purchase of Open Market Properties
Wignals Gate S106 Acquisition
Total Affordable Housing

Budget
2019/20
£’000

1
1
1
1
1
1
1

2
2
3
3
3
4

5
6
7
8

Total Approved Schemes
Financed By:
Capital Receipts
Direct Revenue Funding
Major Repairs Reserve
Grants and Contributions

Page 32
14

Actual
Outturn
£’000

Variance
(under)/
overspend
£’000

1,054
1,192
75
150
425
150

1,067
1,288
74
146
269
4
-

13
96
(1)
(4)
(156)
4
(150)
(1)

75
177
36
75
206
3,615
204
338
65
607
86
359
98
543
481
481
269
269
13
13
3,716
783
1,157
5,656

74
27
35
206
3,190
195
24
219
25
257
282
389
389
263
263
15
15
2,280
1,127
1,120
3
4,530

(150)
(1)
(75)
(425)
(9)
(314)
(65)
(388)
(61)
(102)
(98)
(261)
92
92
(6)
(6)
2
2
(1,436)
344
(37)
3
1,126

11,184

8,888

(2,296)

(709)
(1,611)
(7,764)
(1,100)
(11,184)

(3,620)
(4,358)
(910)
(8,888)

(2,911)
1,611
3,406
190
2,296

Notes to Table 8:
1. Decent Homes (£425k) – Overspend on Central Heating (£13k) and Kitchen and
Bathrooms (£96k) were due to essential replacements and acceleration of work due to
Covid restrictions on property access. Underspend on Re-roofing (£156k) due to delay
in awarding contract. Flat Entrance Doors for Sheltered Schemes (£150k) was delayed
due to additional advice sought on necessity of work, and budget will be carried
forward. Boundary Walls Contract not in Place (£75k), so spend delayed. Contracts
also delayed in respect of Chimneys, and Paths and Drives, so Budget will be carried
forward.
2. Major Area Schemes (£388k) – Delays with English Heritage and Planning regarding
works on the Square (£314k). Contract for Car Parks (£65k) was not in place for the
majority of the year. All underspends to be carried forward
3. ICT / System (£261k) - ICT Strategy (£61k) and Northgate Housing IT System (£102k)
behind program, underspend carried forward to 2021/22. PSPS Transformation
Investment (£98k) was unable to be capitalised in SHDC as assets are owned by
PSPS. Funded by revenue.
4. Aids & Adaptations (£92k) – Programme is demand-led due to the nature of the
works which relate to the health and ability of funding applicants and suitability of
property.
5. Weston Development (£1,436k) – Small Drove Weston Project Delayed due to
contamination issues with site. Underspend carried forward to 2020/21
6. Purchase of Units (£344k) overspend – Project Complete with only minimal spend
left. Overspend due to early delivery of units not originally due for delivery until October
and December 2020
7. Purchase of Open Market Properties (£37k) - Project Complete with only minimal
spend left.
8. Wignals Gate S106 Acquisition (£3k overspend) – Pre Approval work. Project due
for delivery in 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23

Page 33
15

As a result of the above project activity to the 31 March 2020, it is proposed that the Capital
Programme for 2020/21 is updated as follows in Table 8 and is recommended for approval
by Full Council.

Table 9 – Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme Revised 2020/21
Original
Budget
2020/21
£’000

Project

Budget
c/f
2019/20
£’000

Revised
Budget
2020/21
£’000

604
1,295
318
106
656
2
159
199
37
107
210
3,693

134
150
150
75
509

604
1,295
318
106
790
2
309
349
37
182
210
4,202

Sewerage Treatment Plant
The Square
Car Parks
Major Area Schemes

216
358
27
601

9
315
65
389

225
673
92
990

ICT Strategy
Housing IT Systems Upgrade
CPBS Transformation Investment 40% HRA
ICT Infrastructure
IT/System

62
100
82
6
250

61
102
14
177

123
202
96
6
427

Major Adaptions
Aids & Adaptions

390
390

-

390
390

13
65
78

-

13
65
78

Weston Redevelopment – Small Drove
Purchase of Open Market Properties
Purchase of Units
Wignals Gate S106
Schemes Subject to Detailed Approval
Affordable Housing

177
280
1,860
2,200
4,517

1,436
37
1,473

1,613
37
280
1,860
2,200
5,990

Total Approved Schemes

9,529

2,548

12,077

Central Heating Upgrade
Kitchen and Bathroom Replacement
Decent Homes components
Gutters
Smoke Alarms
Roofs & Gutters
Doors & Windows
Flat Entrance Doors Sheltered Schemes
Chimneys
Paths & Drives
Boundary Walls
Fees
Decent Homes

Grounds Maintenance
South Holland Maintenance
Environmental Services

Page 34
16

Original
Budget
2019/20
£’000

Budget
c/f
2018/19
£’000

Revised
Budget
2019/20
£’000

Financed By:
Capital Receipts
Shared Ownership Sale Proceeds
Direct Revenue Funding
Major Repairs Reserve
Grants and Contributions

(3,257)
(409)
(2,628)
(3,235)
(12,532)

(177)
(2,181)
(190)
(2,548)

(3,257)
(409)
(2,805)
(5,416)
(190)
(12,077)

Capital Receipts
There were 28 right-to-buy sales during 2019/20, resulting in total net receipts for the year of
£1.992m, before administration costs and pooling payments. There was a further £195k of
Shared ownership sales during 2019/20.
Capital Receipts
RTB Sales
Shared Ownership Sales
Grants repaid
Total

£'000
(1,992)
(195)
(41)
(2,228)

The Capital Receipts Balance in the HRA as at 31st March 2020 is £2.423m. In the General
Fund there were receipts of £41k relating to repayment of Grants and the balance at 31 March
2020 is £638k.

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
Table 10 below shows the CFR which is a prudential indicator and shows the underlying need
to borrow, based on the actual position at the end of 2019/20. Where the CFR is positive it
denotes the need to borrow.
The 20/21 budgeted CFR movement increases over previous years due to the rollover of
programmes relating to Welland Homes (£0.851 rollover from 2019/20) and funding to be
programmed for Growth and Commercialisation (£0.5m additional over 2019/20)

Table 10 – Capital Financing Requirement
2017/18
£’000
CFR – Non HRA
CFR – HRA
Total
Movement in CFR

2018/19
£’000

2019/20
£’000

2020/21

3,847
68,439
72,286

5,453
68,439
73,892

6,568
68,439
75,007

9,738
68,439
78,177

1,120

1,606

1,115

3,170

Page 35
17

Treasury
Security
The Council has not adopted any formal benchmarks for the management of risk as Officers
believe that decisions on counterparties and maximum investment levels are adequate to
monitor the current and trend positions and amend the operational strategy to manage risk
as conditions change. The Council uses the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset
Services which provides a maximum duration for investments depending on the colour rating
calculated for each financial institution.
All investments held by the Council were within the recommended maximum duration at the
time the investment was made.
The chart below shows how the Council’s funds are spread between differing counterparties
excluding accrued interest.

Cash
The Council’s average level of treasury deposits during 2019/20 was £42.7m and nontreasury deposits was £3.0m. As at 31 March 2020 investments held were £44.3m of which
£11.19m was instant access cash available to meet cash flow requirements. Other
investments based on cost were made up of:
£26.12m - short term investments up to 12 months
£2.60m - Welland Homes equity
£1.06m - Equity in South Holland Local Housing Community Interest Company
£3.23m - Loans to Welland Homes
£143k - Loan to Castle Sports Leisure
The following chart below shows the amounts held in relation to the remaining period to
maturity.

Page 36
18

Yield
Budgeted Interest 2019/20
Actual Interest achieved 2019/20
Target yield (Average 3 month LIBID)
Actual Yield achieved for 2019/20
Actual Yield achieved for 2018/19

£520k (£359k Gen.Fund and £161k HRA)
£517k (£356k Gen.Fund and £161k HRA)
0.634%
1.122%
0.956%

The level of interest achieved was broadly in line with the original budget.

External Borrowing
The Council borrowed £67.456m from the PWLB on 28th March 2012 to meet its obligations
under the Housing Revenue Finance Reforms. This was borrowed for a period of 50 years
on a maturity basis at a rate of 3.48%. No new borrowing has been undertaken during the
financial year.

Year End Accounting
Following the introduction of IFRS9 Financial Instruments the Council is required to measure
its equity investments at Fair Value. This has resulted in the Council’s long term equity in
Welland Homes increasing by £250k, South Holland Local Housing Community Interest
Company equity decreasing by £29k and the UK Municipal Bond Agency equity decreasing
by £50k on the balance sheet.

Page 37
19

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

To:

South Holland District Council Wednesday, 23 September 2020

(Author:

Rhonda Booth Democratic Services Manager)

Subject

Political Group Regulations and Committee Membership Review

Purpose:

To confirm, in accordance with the Local Government (Committees and
Political Groups) Regulations 1990, appointments to committees and review
of membership.

Recommendation(s):
1) That the following Committees be appointed in accordance with political group regulations,
and with the membership set out in Appendix A:









Planning Committee;
Governance and Audit;
Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Committee;
Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Appeal Committee;
Policy Development Panel;
Performance Monitoring Panel;
Licensing Committee;
Committee of the Licensing Committee.

2) That the following Committees be appointed without being politically balanced and with the
membership set out in Appendix A:
 Standards Panel;
 Appeals Panel;
 Settlements Agreements Sub-Committee.
3) That the Council reviews current Committee and Panel membership as set out in Appendix A
and agrees any changes.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 sets out that the default position for
appointments to committees is on politically proportionate grounds. It does however allow
for exceptions to the political balance requirements. South Holland District Council has
adopted exceptions for the following committees where the membership is not
proportionate to the political balance of the Council as a whole and the Independent Group
receives more seats than it would otherwise:



Standards Panel;
Appeals Panel;

Page 39



Settlements Agreements Sub-Committee.

In addition, the Controlling Group has historically not taken up its full allocation of seats on
the Performance Monitoring Panel and as a result the Council has allocated those vacant
seats to members of the Independent Group. Details of these are set out in the
Constitution.
However, when all Committee seats are allocated, including these three Committees, the
total number of seats allocated across all committees is politically balanced.
1.2

The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 require that
exception arrangements are agreed annually and without any member of the authority
voting against them. There is also a requirement to review committee seats where there
have been changes to the membership of political groups.

1.3

The purpose of this report therefore is to confirm, in accordance with the Local Government
(Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, the continuation of the arrangements
for appointments to the committees and panels listed at 1.1 above and in Appendix A to
this report.

1.4

The Council has previously agreed, and has included a provision in its constitution, that a
full review of the membership of committees is carried out at the first Annual Meeting of the
Council following the District Council elections. Appointments to outside bodies are also
made at the same meeting for a four year term. Changes to Committee membership (and
outside body appointments) can be made at any meeting of the Council. Assuming that the
existing arrangements for political group seat allocations are continued, members are
invited to confirm the existing appointments at Appendix A.

2.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

2.1

This will allow the Council to continue to undertake its business.

3.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:
Key Decision:

n/a

Rhonda Booth Democratic Services Manager
rbooth@sholland.gov.uk
N

Page 40

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A

Committee membership list

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A

Committee Membership
Performance Monitoring Panel (PMP)
Name

Group

Cllr. Alcock (Chairman)
Cllr. Astill
Cllr. Beal
Cllr. Booth (Vice-Chairman)
Cllr. Brewis
Cllr. Cronin
Cllr. Grocock
Cllr. King
Cllr. McLean
Cllr. Pepper
Cllr. Redgate
Cllr. Scalese
Cllr. Tennant
Cllr. Walsh
Cllr. Wilkinson

Independent
Conservative
Conservative
Independent
Independent
Independent
Conservative
Independent
Conservative
Conservative
Conservative
Conservative
Independent
Independent
Independent

Policy Development Panel (PDP)
Name

Group

Cllr. Astill
Cllr. Avery
Cllr. Biggadike
Cllr. Booth
Cllr. Drury
Cllr. Gibson
Cllr. Hasan
Cllr. King
Cllr. McLean (Vice-Chairman)
Cllr. Redgate
Cllr. Reynolds
Cllr. Rudkin
Cllr. Slade
Cllr. Sneath
Cllr. Walsh
Cllr. Woolf (Chairman)

Conservative
Conservative
Conservative
Independent
Conservative
Independent
Independent
Independent
Conservative
Conservative
Conservative
Independent
Conservative
Conservative
Independent
Conservative

Governance and Audit Committee
Name

Group

Cllr. Brewis
Cllr. Newton
Cllr. Redgate
Cllr. Reynolds (Vice-Chairman)
Cllr. Seymour
Cllr. Sneath (Chairman)
Cllr. Walsh

Independent
Independent
Conservative
Conservative
Conservative
Conservative
Independent

Page 43

APPENDIX A

Planning Committee
Name

Group

Cllr. Alcock
Cllr. Avery (Vice-Chairman)
Cllr. Beal
Cllr. Biggadike
Cllr. Bingham
Cllr. Brewis
Cllr. Coupland
Cllr. Drury
Cllr. Gambba-Jones (Chairman)
Cllr. Grocock
Cllr. Lawton
Cllr. Rudkin
Cllr. Seymour
Cllr. Tennant
Cllr. Tyrrell

Independent
Conservative
Conservative
Conservative
Independent
Independent
Conservative
Conservative
Conservative
Conservative
Conservative
Independent
Conservative
Independent
Conservative

Licensing Committee and Committee of the Licensing Authority
Name

Group

Cllr. Beal
Cllr. Biggadike
Cllr. Bingham
Cllr. Booth
Cllr. Carter
Cllr. Casson
Cllr. Cronin
Cllr. Drury (Vice-Chairman)
Cllr. King
Cllr. Redgate
Cllr. Rudkin
Cllr. Scalese
Cllr. Seymour
Cllr. Tyrrell (Chairman)
Cllr. Woolf

Conservative
Conservative
Independent
Independent
Conservative
Conservative
Independent
Conservative
Independent
Conservative
Independent
Conservative
Conservative
Conservative
Conservative

Standards Panel
Name

Group

Cllr. Alcock
Cllr. Astill
Cllr. King
Cllr. Slade
Cllr. Sneath
Cllr. Wilkinson

Independent
Conservative
Independent
Conservative
Conservative
Independent

Page 44

APPENDIX A

Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Committee
Name

Group

Cllr. Gambba-Jones
Cllr. Gibson
Cllr. Worth

Conservative
Independent
Conservative

Appeals Panel
Name

Group

Cllr. Booth
Cllr. Gambba-Jones
Cllr. Redgate
Cllr. Wilkinson

Independent
Conservative
Conservative
Independent

Settlements Agreement Sub-Committee
Name

Group

Cllr. Carter
Cllr. Hasan
Cllr. Wilkinson
Cllr. Worth

Conservative
Independent
Independent
Conservative

Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Appeal Committee
Name

Group

To be appointed as necessary
To be appointed as necessary
To be appointed as necessary
Cllr. Wilkinson

Conservative
Conservative
Conservative
Independent

Councillor Development Working Group
(7 councillors reflecting cross party membership)
Name

Group

Cllr C Brewis
Cllr A Newton
Cllr R Gambba-Jones
Cllr C Lawton

Cllr Astill
Cllr G Taylor
Cllr. Drury

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Mark Stinson - Executive Manager Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

To:

Council – 23 September 2020

Author:

Rhonda Booth – Democratic Services Manager

Subject:

Appointment of Independent Person under the Localism Act 2011

Purpose:

This report requests that Council approve the appointment of an
Independent person for standards of conduct issues affecting Council and
Parish Council Members, in accordance with the requirements of Section
28(7) of the Localism Act 2011.

Recommendation(s):
1)

That Mike Sopianos be appointed as “Independent Person” under Section 28(7) of the
Localism Act 2011, until the annual Council meeting in May 2022

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

Under the Localism Act 2011, the arrangements adopted by the Council to deal with the
consideration of Councillor Code of Conduct complaints must include provision of one or
more Independent Persons:


They must be consulted by the Council before it makes a finding as to whether a
Councillor has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct or decides on action to be
taken in respect of that Councillor (this means on a decision to take no action where
the investigation finds no evidence of breach or, where the investigation finds
evidence that there has been a breach, on any local resolution of the complaint, or
on any finding of breach and on any decision on action as a result of that finding);



They may be consulted by the Council, or complainant, in respect of a standards
complaint at any stage of the process; and



They may be consulted by a Councillor or co-opted member of the District Council
or of a Parish Council against whom a complaint has been made.

1.2

As a result of The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment)
Regulations 2015, Independent Persons now have an additional formal statutory role
working together as part of a panel in advising the Council prior to any vote on whether to
dismiss the Council’s Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer,
(‘Protected Officers’). Under these regulations, the advisory panel must contain at least
two Independent Persons. (At meetings held on 24 June 2015 (South Holland District
Council) and 9 July 2015 (Breckland Council) both councils agreed that the two
Independent persons should comprise, where possible, one Independent person
appointed by Breckland Council and one appointed by South Holland Council)

1.3

In June 2012, Tony Wicks was appointed as the Council’s Independent Person; this was
again reaffirmed by the Council in February 2015 through to the Annual Council meeting
in May 2019. Tony Wicks was reappointed by Council in March 2019 through to the

Page 47

Annual Council meeting in May 2020. Due to the impact of COVID-19 the annual general
meeting was moved to 23 September 2020 and Tony Wicks agreed to continue to this
date. The Council wishes to extend its thanks to Mr Tony Wicks for his work as the
Independent Person for South Holland Council.
1.4

In accordance with the provisions of the Localism Act, an advertisement for the
Independent Person Role was published in February 2020. Candidates submitted formal
written applications, and a panel consisting of the Council’s Deputy Monitoring Officer and
the Democratic Services Manager conducted virtual interviews via Zoom for the position
week beginning 31st August 2020. There were 13 applications received; and 4 candidates
were interviewed. Following this competitive process, Mike Sophianos was identified as
the most suitable person for the Independent Person position.

1.5

The Committee on Standards in Public Life published, in January 2019, a report entitled
‘Local Government Ethical Standards’ which proposed a number of changes to the ethical
standards framework. Some of the proposed changes affect the role of the Independent
Person, but are subject to primary legislation bringing them into force. One such change
(that requires an amendment to the Localism Act 2011) will set a two-year fixed term for
an Independent Person appointment (renewable once). Whilst not yet having legal force, it
is proposed that appointments now be made on this basis.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

Members are invited to appoint Mike Sophianos as the Independent Person until the
annual Council meeting in 2022.

2.2

The option to “Do Nothing” does not apply in the instance as the position of Independent
Person is a statutory position which the Council is required to have.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To appoint an ”Independent Person” in line with the requirements of the Localism Act
2011

4.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; Constitutional
& Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & Diversity/Human
Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; Safeguarding;
Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; Other.
Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more of
these headings, these are identified below.

4.1

Constitution & Legal

4.1.1.

To comply with Section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011 that the Council has in place an
Independent Person.

4.2

Financial

4.2.1

An allowance is paid to the Independent person for any work undertaken. The current
allowance is £1,300 per annum.

5.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

Page 48

5.1

All

6.0

ACRONYMS

6.1

None

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email:
Key Decision:
Exempt Decision:

None

Rhonda Booth – Democratic Services Manager
rbooth@sholland.gov.uk
No
No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Executive Director Commercialisation (S151), Christine Marshall

To:

South Holland District Council - 23 September 2020

Author:

Sean Howsam – Treasury & Investment Manager (PSPS)

Subject:

Annual Treasury Management Review 2019/20

Purpose:

To consider the Annual Treasury Management Review for 2019/20.

Recommendation(s):
1)

That the Council receives and approves the Annual Treasury Management Review 2019/20
as required by the Local Government Act 2003.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to
produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and
treasury indicators for 2019/20. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA
Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for
Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).
For 2019/20 the following reports have been submitted:




an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 27 February 2019);
a mid year (minimum) treasury update report (Council 27 November 2019);
An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to
the strategy (this report).

1.2

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and scrutiny
of treasury management policy and activities. This report is therefore important in that
respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights
compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved by members.

1.3

This Council confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to give
prior scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by the Governance and
Audit Committee. Member training on treasury management issues was undertaken on
14 November 2019 in order to support the members’ scrutiny role.

1.4

The Treasury Management function is administered by Public Sector Partnership Services
Ltd on behalf of the Council.

1.5

The Council’s financial statements for the 2019/20 financial year are currently subject to
external audit therefore the figures in this report may be subject to change.

Page 51

2.0

INTRODUCTION

2.1

This report summarises the following :







Capital activity during the year;
Impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying indebtedness (the Capital
Financing Requirement);
The actual prudential and treasury indicators;
Overall treasury position identifying how the Council has borrowed in relation to its
indebtedness, and the impact on investment balances;
Summary of interest rate movements in the year;
Borrowing and investment outturn positions;
Economy and interest rates.

3.0

THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING 2019/20

3.1

The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. These activities may
either be:




3.2

financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources
(capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant
impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or
if insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources, the
capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.

The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators. The
following tables show the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed.
£’000 General Fund
Capital expenditure
Financed in year
Unfinanced capital expenditure

£’000
Housing
Account (HRA)

Revenue

Capital expenditure
Financed in year
Unfinanced capital expenditure

2018/19
Actual

2019/20
Estimate

2019/20
Actual

3,678

10,351

3,901

(2,072)

(5,885)

(2,786)

1,606

4,466

1,115

2018/19
Actual

2019/20
Estimate

2019/20
Actual

4,885

11,184

8,972

(4,885)

(11,184)

(8,972)

-

-

-

Page 52

4.0

THE COUNCIL’S OVERALL BORROWING NEED

4.1

The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR). This figure is a gauge of the Council’s indebtedness. The
CFR results from the capital activity of the Council and resources used to pay for the
capital spend. It represents the 2019/20 unfinanced capital expenditure (see above
table), and prior years’ net or unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid
for by revenue or other resources.

4.2

Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for this
borrowing need. Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the treasury service
organises the Council’s cash position to ensure that sufficient cash is available to meet
the capital plans and cash flow requirements. This may be sourced by utilising temporary
cash resources within the Council or through borrowing from external bodies (such as the
Government, through the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) or the money markets).

4.3

Reducing the CFR – the Council’s (non HRA) underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not
allowed to rise indefinitely. Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are
broadly charged to revenue over the life of the asset. The Council is required to make an
annual revenue charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), to reduce the
CFR. This is effectively a repayment of the non-HRA borrowing need (there is no
statutory requirement to reduce the HRA CFR). This differs from the treasury
management arrangements which ensure that cash is available to meet capital
commitments. External debt can also be borrowed or repaid at any time, but this does not
change the CFR.
The total CFR can also be reduced by:


the application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied capital
receipts); or



charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP).

4.4

The Council’s 2019/20 MRP Policy as required by Ministry of Housing, Communities and
Local Government (MHCLG) guidance was approved as part of the Treasury
Management Strategy Report for 2019/20 on 27 February 2019.

4.5

The Council’s CFR for the year is shown below, and represents a key prudential indicator:
31 March
2019
Actual

31 March
2020
Budget

31 March
2020
Actual

Opening Balance

3,847

5,453

5,453

Add unfinanced capital expenditure
(as above)

1,606

4,466

1,115

Closing Balance

5,453

9,919

6,568

CFR (£’000): General Fund

Page 53

CFR (£’000): HRA

Opening Balance

31 March
2019
Actual

31 March
2020
Budget

31 March
2020
Actual

68,439

68,439

68,439

-

-

-

68,439

68,439

68,439

Add unfinanced capital expenditure
(as above)
Closing Balance

Borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for net borrowing and the CFR,
and by the authorised limit.
4.6

Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over
the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure that its gross
external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the
preceding year (2018/19) plus the estimates of any additional CFR for the current
(2019/20) and next two financial years. This essentially means that the Council is not
borrowing to support revenue expenditure. This indicator allows the Council some
flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs in 2019/20. The table below
highlights the Council’s gross borrowing position against the CFR. The Council has
complied with this prudential indicator.
31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2020
Actual
Budget
Actual
(£’000)
(£’000)
(£’000)

4.7

Gross Borrowing Position

67,456

67,456

67,456

CFR

73,892

78,358

75,007

The authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by s3 of the Local
Government Act 2003. Once this has been set, the Council does not have the power to
borrow above this level. The following table demonstrates that during 2019/20 the Council
has maintained gross borrowing within its authorised limit.
The operational boundary is the expected borrowing position of the Council during the
year. Periods where the actual position is either below or over the boundary is acceptable
subject to the authorised limit not being breached.

Page 54

Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator identifies the
trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of
investment income) against the net revenue stream.
2019/20
£91m
£67.456m
£87m
£67.456m

Authorised limit
Maximum gross borrowing position
Operational boundary
Average gross borrowing position
Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream – Non HRA
HRA

-2.59%
36.88%

5.0

TREASURY POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

5.1

The Council’s debt and investment position is organised by the treasury management
service in order to ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital activities, security for
investments and to manage risks within all treasury management activities. At the
beginning and the end of 2019/20 the Council’s treasury position including accrued
interest was as follows:

31/3/19
Amount
£’000

Rate/
Return
%

Average
Life

31/3/20
Amount
£’000

Fixed rate funding
PWLB
Leases

67,456
-

3.48
n/a

43 years

67,456
-

3.48
n/a

42 years

Total debt

67,456

3.48

43 years

67,456

3.48

42 years

CFR

73,892

75,007

Over/(under) borrowing

(6,436)

(7,551)

Rate/ Average
Return
Life
%

Cash and investments:
long term equity and
service loans
short term

(5,605)

n/a

n/a

(7,034)

n/a

n/a

(33,602)

1.07

173 days

(26,118)

0.97

138 days

instant access deposits

(4,977)

0.73

1 day

(11,192)

0.57

1 day

(44,184)

1.02

150 days

(44,344)

0.85

97 days

Total cash and
investments
Net debt

23,272

23,112

Page 55

5.2

Investments and Cash and Cash Equivalents held as at 31 March 2020 including accrued
interest were as follows:

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

Actual
31/03/19
£000’s

Actual
31/03/19
%

Actual
31/03/20
£000’s

Actual
31/03/20
%

Banks

29,556

76

26,112

70

Building Societies

3,002

8

3,004

8

Local Authorities

3,019

8

2,001

5

Total managed in house

35,577

92

31,117

83

Money Market Funds

3,002

8

6,193

17

Total managed externally

3,002

8

6,193

17

Total Treasury Investments

38,579

100

37,310

100

Treasury Investments

Non-Treasury Investments (at fair value)
Equity

2,725

49

3,664

52

Service Loans (long term debtors)

2,880

51

3,370

48

Total Non-Treasury Investments

5,605

100

7,034

100

Actual
31/03/19
£000’s

Actual
31/03/19
%

Actual
31/03/20
£000’s

Actual
31/03/20
%

Total Treasury Investments

38,579

87

37,310

84

Total Non-Treasury Investments

5,605

13

7,034

16

Total of all Investments

44,184

100

44,344

100

SUMMARY

The maturity structure of the investment portfolio was as follows:

Investments
Longer than 1 year
Under 1 year
Total

Page 56

2018/19
Actual
£’000

2019/20
Actual
£’000

5,605
38,579
44,184

7,034
37,310
44,344

The exposure to fixed and variable rates on investments was as follows:

Fixed rate
Variable rate

6.0

THE STRATEGY FOR 2019/20

6.1

Investment strategy and control of interest rate risk

31/3/19
Actual
£’000
36,482

31/3/20
Actual
£’000
29,488

(83%)

(66%)

7,702

14,856

(17%)

(34%)

Investment returns remained low during 2019/20. The expectation for interest rates
within the treasury management strategy for 2019/20 was that Bank Rate would stay at
0.75% during 2019/20 as it was not expected that the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC)
would be able to deliver on an increase in Bank Rate until the Brexit issue was finally
settled. However, there was an expectation that Bank Rate would rise after that issue
was settled, but would only rise to 1.0% during 2020.
Rising concerns over the possibility that the UK could leave the European Union (EU) at
the end of October 2019 caused longer term investment rates to be on a falling trend for
most of April to September. They then rose after the end of October deadline was rejected
by the Commons but fell back again in January before recovering again after the 31
January departure of the UK from the EU. When the coronavirus outbreak hit the UK in
February/March, rates initially plunged but then rose sharply back up again due to a

Page 57

shortage of liquidity in financial markets. As longer term rates were significantly higher
than shorter term rates during the year, value was therefore sought by placing longer term
investments where cash balances were sufficient to allow this.
While the Council has taken a cautious approach to investing, it is also fully appreciative
of changes to regulatory requirements for financial institutions in terms of additional capital
and liquidity that came about in the aftermath of the financial crisis. These requirements
have provided a far stronger basis for financial institutions, with annual stress tests by
regulators evidencing how institutions are now far more able to cope with extreme
stressed market and economic conditions.
Investment balances have been kept to a minimum through the agreed strategy of using
reserves and balances to support internal borrowing, rather than borrowing externally from
the financial markets. External borrowing would have incurred an additional cost, due to
the differential between borrowing and investment rates as illustrated in the charts shown
above and below. Such an approach has also provided benefits in terms of reducing the
counterparty risk exposure, by having fewer investments placed in the financial markets.
6.2

Borrowing strategy and control of interest rate risk
During 2019/20, the Council maintained an under-borrowed position. This meant that the
capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), was not fully funded with
loan debt, as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow was used
as an interim measure. All current loan debt specifically relates to the HRA and the
General Fund has no loan debt. This strategy was prudent as investment returns were low
and minimising counterparty risk on placing investments also needed to be considered.
A cost of carry remained during the year on any new long-term borrowing that was not
immediately used to finance capital expenditure, as it would have caused a temporary
increase in cash balances; this would have incurred a revenue cost – the difference
between (higher) borrowing costs and (lower) investment returns.
The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances, has served
well over the last few years. However, this was kept under review to avoid incurring
higher borrowing costs in the future when this authority may not be able to avoid new
borrowing to finance capital expenditure.
Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution was adopted
with the treasury operations. The Section 151 Officer therefore monitored interest rates in
financial markets and adopted a pragmatic strategy based upon the following principles to
manage interest rate risks:


if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short
term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or
of risks of deflation), then long term borrowings would have been postponed.



if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long
and short term rates than initially expected, perhaps arising from an acceleration in
the start date and in the rate of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an
increase in world economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the
portfolio position would have been re-appraised. Most likely, fixed rate funding
would have been drawn whilst interest rates were lower than they were projected
to be in the next few years.

Page 58

Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed
borrowing rates during 2019/20 and the two subsequent financial years. Variable, or
short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of borrowing over the period.

PWLB rates are based on, and are determined by, gilt (UK Government bonds) yields
through H.M.Treasury determining a specified margin to add to gilt yields. There was
much speculation during the second half of 2019 that bond markets were in a bubble
which was driving bond prices up and yields down to historically very low levels. The
context for that was heightened expectations that the US could have been heading for a
recession in 2020, and a general background of a downturn in world economic growth,
especially due to fears around the impact of the trade war between the US and China,
together with inflation generally at low levels in most countries and expected to remain
subdued; these conditions were conducive to very low bond yields. While inflation
targeting by the major central banks has been successful over the last 30 years in
lowering inflation expectations, the real equilibrium rate for central rates has fallen
considerably due to the high level of borrowing by consumers: this means that central
banks do not need to raise rates as much now to have a major impact on consumer
spending, inflation, etc. This has pulled down the overall level of interest rates and bond
yields in financial markets over the last 30 years. We have therefore seen, over the last
year, many bond yields up to 10 years in the Eurozone turn negative. In addition, there

Page 59

has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US whereby 10 year yields have
fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a precursor of a recession. The
other side of this coin is that bond prices are elevated as investors would be expected to
be moving out of riskier assets i.e. shares, in anticipation of a downturn in corporate
earnings and so selling out of equities.
Gilt yields were on a generally falling trend during the last year up until the coronavirus
crisis hit western economies. Since then, gilt yields have fallen sharply to unprecedented
lows as investors have panicked in selling shares in anticipation of impending recessions
in western economies, and moved cash into safe haven assets i.e. government bonds.
However, major western central banks also started quantitative easing purchases of
government bonds which will act to maintain downward pressure on government bond
yields at a time when there is going to be a huge and quick expansion of government
expenditure financed by issuing government bonds; (this would normally cause bond
yields to rise). At the close of the day on 31 March, all gilt yields from 1 to 5 years were
between 0.12 – 0.20% while even 25-year yields were at only 0.83%.
However, HM Treasury has imposed two changes in the margins over gilt yields for PWLB
rates in 2019-20 without any prior warning; the first on 9 October 2019, added an
additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB rates. That increase was then partially
reversed for some forms of borrowing on 11 March 2020, at the same time as the
Government announced in the Budget a programme of increased spending on
infrastructure expenditure. It also announced that there would be a consultation with local
authorities on possibly further amending these margins; this was due to end on 4 June but
has been extended. It is clear that the Treasury intends to put a stop to local authorities
borrowing money from the PWLB to purchase commercial property if the aim is solely to
generate an income stream.
Following the changes on 11 March 2020 in margins over gilt yields, the current situation
is as follows: •
•
•
•
•

PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 200 basis points (G+200bps)
PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 180 basis points (G+180bps)
PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps)
PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps)
Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps)

There is likely to be little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next two years as it
will take national economies a prolonged period to recover all the momentum they will
lose in the sharp recession that will be caused during the coronavirus shut down period.
Inflation is also likely to be very low during this period and could even turn negative in
some major western economies during 2020/21.
7.0

BORROWING OUTTURN FOR 2019/20

7.1

Due to investment concerns with both counterparty risk and low investment returns, no
new borrowing was undertaken during the year.

7.2

No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% differential between PWLB
new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates made rescheduling unviable.

7.3

The Council’s external borrowing from the PWLB at 31 March 2020 remained at
£67.456m at a fixed rate of 3.48% and matures on 28 March 2062.

Page 60

8.0

INVESTMENT OUTTURN FOR 2019/20

8.1

Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by MHCLG guidance,
which has been implemented in the annual investment strategy approved by the Council
on 27 February 2019. This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment
counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating
agencies, supplemented by additional market data (such as rating outlooks, credit default
swaps, bank share prices etc.

8.2

The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, and the
Council had no liquidity difficulties.

8.3

Resources – the Council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital resources and
cash flow monies. The Council’s core cash resources comprised as follows:
Balance Sheet Resources (£’000)
Balances
Earmarked reserves
Major Repairs Reserve
Capital Grants and Contributions
Usable capital receipts
Total

8.4

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
18,928
22,252
8,902
8,213
4,684
3,586
2,707
2,991
4,959
3,061
40,180
40,103

The Council held average treasury investment balances of £42.7m which were mainly
internally managed and achieved an average rate of return of 0.949% compared with the
average 3 Month London Interbank Bid (LIBID) rate of 0.634%.
The Council also held average non-treasury investment balances (excluding equity) of
£3m. The Council has issued four loans totalling £3.23m to Welland Homes Limited,
which is the Council’s wholly owned Housing Development Company. These are service
loans (classified as long term debtors) and the Council receives interest of 3.5% on these
loans which is payable on a quarterly basis. Total interest earned during the year was
£107,761.
The combined rate of return on all investments averaged 1.122%.

8.5

Actual investment interest earned during 2019/20 was £516k which was broadly in line
with the original budget of £520k.

Page 61

9.0

THE ECONOMY AND INTEREST RATES (commentary provided by Link Asset
Services - external treasury advisors)

9.1

UK. Brexit. The main issue in 2019 was the repeated battles in the House of Commons
to agree on one way forward for the UK over the issue of Brexit. This resulted in the
resignation of Teresa May as the leader of the Conservative Government and the election
of Boris Johnson as the new leader, on a platform of taking the UK out of the EU on 31
October 2019. The House of Commons duly frustrated that renewed effort and so a
general election in December settled the matter once and for all by a decisive victory for
the Conservative Party: that then enabled the UK to leave the EU on 31 January 2020.
However, this still leaves much uncertainty as to whether there will be a reasonable trade
deal achieved by the target deadline of the end of 2020. It is also unclear as to whether
the coronavirus outbreak may yet impact on this deadline; however, the second and third
rounds of negotiations have already had to be cancelled due to the virus.
Economic growth in 2019 has been very volatile with quarter 1 unexpectedly strong at
0.5%, quarter 2 dire at -0.2%, quarter 3 bouncing back up to +0.5% and quarter 4 flat at
0.0%, +1.1% y/y. 2020 started with optimistic business surveys pointing to an upswing in
growth after the ending of political uncertainty as a result of the decisive result of the
general election in December settled the Brexit issue. However, the three monthly Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) statistics in January were disappointing, being stuck at 0.0%
growth. Since then, the whole world has changed as a result of the coronavirus
outbreak. It now looks likely that the closedown of whole sections of the economy will
result in a fall in GDP of at least 15% in quarter two. What is uncertain, however, is the
extent of the damage that will be done to businesses by the end of the lock down period,
when the end of the lock down will occur, whether there could be a second wave of the
outbreak, how soon a vaccine will be created and then how quickly it can be administered
to the population. This leaves huge uncertainties as to how quickly the economy will
recover.
After the Monetary Policy Committee raised Bank Rate from 0.5% to 0.75% in August
2018, due to Brexit uncertainty the MPC chose not to act until March 2020; at this point it
was abundantly clear that the coronavirus outbreak posed a huge threat to the economy
of the UK. Two emergency cuts in Bank Rate from 0.75% occurred in March, first to
0.25% and then to 0.10%. These cuts were accompanied by an increase in quantitative
easing (QE), essentially the purchases of gilts (mainly) by the Bank of England of
£200bn. The Government and the Bank were also very concerned to stop people losing
their jobs during this lock down period. Accordingly, the Government introduced various
schemes to subsidise both employed and self-employed jobs for three months while the
country was locked down. It also put in place a raft of other measures to help businesses
access loans from their banks, (with the Government providing guarantees to the banks
against losses), to tide them over the lock down period when some firms may have little or
no income. However, at the time of writing, this leaves open a question as to whether
some firms will be solvent, even if they take out such loans, and some may also choose to
close as there is, and will be, insufficient demand for their services. At the time of writing,
this is a rapidly evolving situation so there may be further measures to come from the
Bank and the Government in April and beyond. The measures to support jobs and
businesses already taken by the Government will result in a huge increase in the annual
budget deficit in 2020/21 from 2%, to nearly 11%. The ratio of debt to GDP is also likely
to increase from 80% to around 105%. In the Budget in March, the Government also
announced a large increase in spending on infrastructure; this will also help the economy
to recover once the lock down is ended. Provided the coronavirus outbreak is brought
under control relatively swiftly, and the lock down is eased, then it is hoped that there
would be a sharp recovery, but one that would take a prolonged time to fully recover
previous lost momentum.

Page 62

Inflation has posed little concern for the MPC during the last year, being mainly between
1.5 – 2.0%. It is also not going to be an issue for the near future as the world economy
will be heading into a recession which is already causing a glut in the supply of oil which
has fallen sharply in price. Other prices will also be under downward pressure while wage
inflation has also been on a downward path over the last half year and is likely to continue
that trend in the current environment. While inflation could even turn negative in the
Eurozone, this is currently not likely in the UK.
Employment had been growing healthily through the last year but it is obviously going to
be adversely affected by the Coronavirus during 2020/21. The good news over the last
year is that wage inflation has been significantly higher than Consumer Price Index (CPI)
inflation which means that consumer real spending power had been increasing and so will
have provided support to GDP growth. However, Coronavirus restrictions will have had a
major impact on retail during the start of 2020/21.
9.2

USA. Growth in quarter 1 of 2019 was strong at 3.1% but growth fell back to 2.0% in
quarter 2 and 2.1% in quarters 3 and 4. The slowdown in economic growth resulted in the
Fed cutting rates from 2.25-2.50% by 0.25% in each of July, September and October.
Once coronavirus started to impact the US in a big way, the Fed took decisive action by
cutting rates twice by 0.50%, and then 1.00%, in March, all the way down to 0.00 – 0.25%.
Near the end of March, Congress agreed a $2trn stimulus package (worth about 10% of
GDP) and new lending facilities announced by the Fed which could channel up to $6trn in
temporary financing to consumers and firms over the coming months. Nearly half of the
first figure is made up of permanent fiscal transfers to households and firms, including
cash payments of $1,200 to individuals.
The loans for small businesses, which convert into grants if firms use them to maintain
their payroll, will cost $367bn and 100% of the cost of lost wages for four months will also
be covered. In addition there will be $500bn of funding from the Treasury’s Exchange
Stabilization Fund which will provide loans for hard-hit industries, including $50bn for
airlines.
However, all this will not stop the US falling into a sharp recession in quarter 2 of 2020.

9.3

EUROZONE. The annual rate of GDP growth has been steadily falling, from 1.8% in
2018 to only 0.9% y/y in quarter 4 in 2019. The European Central Bank (ECB) ended its
programme of quantitative easing purchases of debt in December 2018, which meant that
the central banks in the US, UK and EU had all ended the phase of post financial crisis
expansion of liquidity supporting world financial markets by purchases of debt. However,
the downturn in Eurozone (EZ) growth, together with inflation falling well under the upper
limit of its target range of 0 to 2%, (but it aims to keep it near to 2%), prompted the ECB to
take new measures to stimulate growth. At its March 2019 meeting it announced a third
round of Targeted Longer-Term Refinancing Operations (TLTROs); this provided banks
with cheap two year maturity borrowing every three months from September 2019 until
March 2021. However, since then, the downturn in EZ and world growth has gathered
momentum so at its meeting in September 2019, it cut its deposit rate further into negative
territory, from -0.4% to -0.5% and announced a resumption of quantitative easing
purchases of debt to start in November at €20bn per month, a relatively small amount,
plus more TLTRO measures. Once coronavirus started having a major impact in Europe,
the ECB took action in March 2020 to expand its QE operations and other measures to
help promote expansion of credit and economic growth. What is currently missing is a
coordinated EU response of fiscal action by all national governments to protect jobs,
support businesses directly and promote economic growth by expanding government
expenditure on e.g. infrastructure; action is therefore likely to be patchy.

Page 63

9.4

CHINA. Economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite repeated
rounds of central bank stimulus; medium-term risks have also been increasing. The major
feature of 2019 was the trade war with the US. However, this has been eclipsed by being
the first country to be hit by the coronavirus outbreak; this resulted in a lock down of the
country and a major contraction of economic activity in February-March 2020. While it
appears that China has put a lid on the virus by the end of March, these are still early
days to be confident and it is clear that the economy is going to take some time to recover
its previous rate of growth. Ongoing economic issues remain, in needing to make major
progress to eliminate excess industrial capacity and to switch investment from property
construction and infrastructure to consumer goods production. It also needs to address
the level of non-performing loans in the banking and credit systems.

9.5

JAPAN - has been struggling to stimulate consistent significant GDP growth and to get
inflation up to its target of 2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is also making
little progress on fundamental reform of the economy. It appears to have missed much of
the domestic impact from coronavirus in 2019/20 but the virus is at an early stage there.

9.6

WORLD GROWTH. The trade war between the US and China on tariffs was a major
concern to financial markets and was depressing worldwide growth during 2019, as any
downturn in China would spill over into impacting countries supplying raw materials to
China. Concerns were particularly focused on the synchronised general weakening of
growth in the major economies of the world. These concerns resulted in government bond
yields in the developed world falling significantly during 2019. In 2020, coronavirus is the
big issue which is going to sweep around the world and have a major impact in causing a
world recession in growth in 2020.

10.0

OPTIONS

10.1

There are no alternative options presented.

11.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

11.1

To comply with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Code of
Practice on Treasury Management 2017.

12.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

12.1

The report provides Members with a summary of the economy, the effect it has had on
financial markets and the treasury activity during 2019/20.

13.0

IMPLICATIONS

13.1

Constitution & Legal

13.1.1

This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to
produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and
treasury indicators for 2019/20. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA
Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities.

13.1.2

The Council’s financial strategy, capital financing and borrowing all form part of the Policy
Framework and are therefore non-executive matters that fall within the remit of the full
Council.

Page 64

13.2

Financial

13.2.1

The report provides details of the treasury activity for the 2019/20 financial year to inform
members on performance and to highlight any changes in the year.

13.2.2

Total interest received was £516k with £355k to the General Fund and £161k to the
Housing Revenue Account. This was broadly in line with budget.

13.3

Risk Management

13.3.1

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the MHCLG Guidance on Local
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the revised CIPFA Treasury Management
in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM
Code”). The Council’s investment priorities are security first, liquidity second, then return.

14.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

14.1

Due to budgetary considerations all wards are affected.

15.0

ACRONYMS

15.1
15.2
15.3
15.4
15.5
15.6
15.7
15.8
15.9
15.10
15.11
15.12
15.13
15.13
15.14
15.15
15.16

PSPS – Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd
CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
HRA – Housing Revenue Account
CFR – Capital Financing Requirement
PWLB – Public Works Loan Board
MRP – Minimum Revenue Provision
VRP – Voluntary Revenue Provision
MHCLG – Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
EU – European Union
GDP – Gross Domestic Product
MPC – Monetary Policy Committee
LIBID – London Interbank Bid Rate
QE - Quantitative Easing
CPI – Consumer Price Index
ECB – European Central Bank
EZ – Eurozone
TLTRO - Targeted Longer-Term Refinancing Operations

Background papers: - SHDC Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2019/20
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email:

Sean Howsam – Treasury and Investment Manager (PSPSL)
01507 613248
Sean.Howsam@pspsl.co.uk

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report: None

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 15.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

To:

South Holland District Council Wednesday, 23 September 2020

(Author:

Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer)

Subject

Special Urgency - Non-Key Decisions - Application of Call-In

Purpose:

To report to Council reasons for urgency relating to a number of Non-Key
Decisions, as required by the Council’s Constitution

Recommendation(s):
That the information contained within the report be noted.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

Part 4D of the Constitution (Access to Information Procedure Rules) details a number of
situations where call-in of a decision may be waived, subject to certain criteria being met
and the relevant Urgency Notice being published.

1.2

Paragraph 14 lays out how this applies to Non-Key Decisions.

1.3

Where, for any Non-Key Decision, any delay likely to be caused by the call-in process
would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public’s interest, the Executive Decision shall
not be subject to call-in subject to:
 The Chairman of the Performance Monitoring Panel agreeing both that the decision
proposed is reasonable in all the circumstances and to it being treated as a matter of
urgency (in the absence of the Chairman, the Chairman of the Council or in his/her
absence the Vice-Chairman of the Council’s consent shall be required. In the absence
of all three, the Head of the Paid Service or his/her nominee’s consent shall be
required); and
 The decision notice stating that the decision is not subject to call-in and the reasons
why the delay caused by the call-in procedure is considered to be seriously detrimental
to the Council’s or the public’s interest; and
 A report being submitted to the next available meeting of full Council indicating the
reasons for the urgency.

2.0

DECISIONS MADE

2.1

One decision has been made since the last full Council meeting, as a direct result of the
Council’s Covid emergency response, that has fallen under the Special Urgency rules for
Non-Key decisions detailed above. This decision is detailed within Appendix A, attached to
this report. The decision met the criteria detailed within the Constitution, and agreement
was obtained from the Chairman of the Performance Monitoring Panel. The decision was

Page 67

published on the Council’s website and the Councillors advised of the decision upon
publication. The decision can be viewed in full on the website via the following link:
https://democracy.sholland.gov.uk/DelegatedDecisions
3.0

OPTIONS

3.1

To note the information detailed within this report.

4.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

4.1

To comply with the Council’s Constitution.

5.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

5.1

Reporting reasons for urgency will ensure that the requirements of the Constitution are
complied with, and demonstrates transparent decision-making.

6.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

6.1

Constitutional & Legal

6.1.1 Paragraph 14 of part 4D (Access to Information Procedure Rules) of the Constitution
requires that a report be submitted to the Council, indicating reasons for urgency of
decisions made under the Special Urgency rules for Non-Key Decisions.
7.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

7.1

The decisions that have been made, and are detailed within this report, affect all wards and
communities.

8.0

ACRONYMS

8.1

None.

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:
Key Decision:

None

Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk
N

Page 68

Exempt Decision:

N

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A

Table explaining the reasons for urgency of urgent non-key decisions
made

Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A
Decision
South Holland Discretionary Business Grants
Scheme – To approve the Council’s approach to
the delivery of the Phase 2 of the discretionary
business grants scheme, to support businesses
affected by Covid-19

Decision maker
The Deputy Leader
(Portfolio Holder –
Growth and
Commercialisation)

Date of decision
28th July 2020

Reason for urgency
The economic need to mobilise the programme as
soon as practicably possible, and a government
expectation that local authorities will start making
payments to businesses under their schemes in early
August, and the Council wishes to be in a position to
start making payments to local traders as soon as
possible. It is therefore necessary that the authority
agrees the principles under which its own scheme
will operate, so as to enable mobilisation of the
scheme in a timely fashion.

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

